DURHAM COUNTY COUNCIL

At a Meeting of **Cabinet** held in Committee Room 2, County Hall, Durham on **Wednesday 16 July 2014 at 9.30 am**

Present:

Councillor S Henig (Leader of the Council)

Members of the Committee:

Councillors A Napier (Deputy Leader of the Council), J Brown, N Foster, L Hovvels, O Johnson, M Nicholls, M Plews, B Stephens and E Tomlinson

Apologies:

Apologies for absence were received from

Also Present:

Councillor Colin Carr, Councillor John Clare, Councillor Mike Dixon, Councillor Olwyn Gunn, Councillor John Shuttleworth, Councillor Mamie Simmons, Councillor Tracie Smith, Councillor Angela Surtees, Councillor Mark Wilkes and Councillor Mac Williams

1 Minutes of the meeting held on Wednesday 11 June 2014

The minutes of the meeting held on 11 June 2014 were confirmed as a correct record and signed by the Chairman.

2 Declarations of interest

There were no declarations of interest.

3 Housing Stock Transfer: Outcomes of Formal Consultation - Stage 1 [Key Decision: R&ED/07/14]

The Cabinet considered a joint report of the Corporate Director Regeneration and Economic Development which sought to advise on the outcomes of the first stage of formal consultation on the council's transfer proposal (for copy see file of minutes).

Resolved:

That the recommendations contained in the report be agreed.

4 Adoption of North Pennines AONB Management Plan [Key Decision: R&ED/11/14]

The Cabinet considered a joint report of the Corporate Director Regeneration and Economic Development and Corporate Director Resources which provided detail on the review of the latest Management Plan for the North Pennines AONB which would guide the management of its protected landscapes for the period 2014-19 and was presented to Cabinet for adoption (for copy see file of minutes).

Resolved:

That the recommendations contained in the report be agreed.

5 Customer First Strategy Refresh 2014-2017 [Key Decision: NS/22/13]

The Cabinet considered a report of the Corporate Director Neighbourhood Services which provided detail on the results of the consultation process for a new Customer First Strategy for the Council and sought agreement on the Strategy for 2014-2017.

Resolved:

That the recommendations contained in the report be agreed.

6 Proposal to change the age range of Chester-le-Street C of E (Controlled) Junior School from 7 - 11 to 4 - 11 from 1 January 2015 to create a C of E (Controlled) Primary School and to close South Pelaw Infant School as a separate school from 31 December 2014 [Key Decision CAS/01/14]

The Cabinet considered a report of the Corporate Director Children and Adult Services which sought approval to change the age range of Chester-le-Street C of E (Controlled) Primary School and to close South Pelaw Infant School as a separate school from 31 December 2014, taking account of the Local Authority's duties as prescribed in the Education and Inspections Act 2006 to secure sufficient school places, and to secure good outcomes for all children and young people in their local area.

Resolved:

That the recommendations contained in the report be agreed.

7 Draft Corporate Tree Management Policy [Key Decision: [NS/25/13]

The Cabinet considered a joint report of the Corporate Director Neighbourhoods and Corporate Director Regeneration and Economic Development which sought agreement of the draft countywide tree policy for the management of all trees under Durham County Council's ownership which pose a safety risk to the public highway (for copy see file of minutes).

Resolved:

That the recommendations contained in the report be agreed.

8 Medium Term Financial Plan (5), Council Plan, Service Plans 2015/16 - 2017/18 and Review of the Council's Local Council Tax Reduction Scheme [Key Decision: CORP/R/14/02]

The Cabinet considered a joint report of the Corporate Director Resources and Assistant Chief Executive which provided an update on the development of the 2015/16 budget, the Medium term Financial Plan (MTFP(5)) and Council Plan / Service Plans 2015/16 – 2017/18 and a review of the Council Tax Reduction Scheme, which has been in place since 1 April 2013 (for copy see file of minutes).

Resolved:

That the recommendations contained in the report be agreed.

9 Treasury Management Outturn 2013/14

The Cabinet considered a report of the Corporate Director Resources which updated Cabinet with the annual treasury management report for the year ended 31 March 2014 (for copy see file of minutes).

Resolved:

That the recommendations contained in the report be agreed.

10 2013/14 Final Outturn for General Fund, Housing Revenue Account and Collection Fund

The Cabinet considered a report of the Corporate Director Resources which provided details of the revenue and capital outturn for both the General Fund and the Housing Revenue Account (HRA) for 2013/14, and also provides the outturn for the Collection Fund in respect of Council Tax collection and Business Rates collection (for copy see file of minutes).

Resolved:

That the recommendations contained in the report be agreed.

11 Transfer of Land Held in Trust at Peases West, Crook

The Cabinet considered a report of the Corporate Director Regeneration and Economic Development which sought approval for the disposal of an area of land held on trust by the Council at Peases West, Crook to Crook Community Leisure (for copy see file of minutes).

Resolved:

That the recommendations contained in the report be approved.

12 World War 1 Centenary Activity: Victoria Cross Winner's Commemorative Paving Stone Project

The Cabinet considered a report of the Corporate Director Neighbourhood Services which outlined the Council's involvement in delivering the Department of Communities and Local Government's Victoria Cross Winner Commemorative Paving Stone Project and proposed a process by which the permanent location of paving stones would be determined (for copy see file of minutes).

Resolved:

That the recommendations contained in the report be agreed.

13 Durham County Council's Festivals and Events Programme Development -Report of Corporate Director, Neighbourhood Services

The Cabinet considered a report of the Corporate Director Neighbourhood Services which reviewed the current position regarding the Council's involvement with festivals and events and to provide a framework to ensure best use of existing resources to create a vibrant and diverse programme if events and festivals (for copy see file of minutes).

Resolved:

That the recommendations contained in the report be agreed.

14 Lumiere 2015 - Report of Corporate Director, Neighbourhood Services

The Cabinet considered a report of the Corporate Director Neighbourhood Services which informed Cabinet of the evaluation of the 2013 Lumiere festival and to consider whether a similar event should be held in 2015 (for copy see file of minutes).

Resolved:

That the recommendations contained in the report be agreed.

15 Dog Control Order - Seasonal Exclusion of Dogs from Seaham Beach

The Cabinet considered a report of the Corporate Director Neighbourhoods which set out proposals for the making of a Dog Control Order which would prohibit dogs from Seaham Beach for the summer months (1st April to 30th September) with effect from 2015 onwards (for copy see file of minutes).

Resolved:

That the recommendations contained in the report be agreed.

16 County Durham Youth Justice Plan 2014/16

That the recommendations contained in the report be agreed.

17 Review of Children's Centres in County Durham

The Cabinet considered a report of the Corporate Director, Children and Adults Services which set out the details of a review of the current service delivery model in view of the new Early Years Strategy and the role / requirement of Children's Centre buildings to deliver improved outcomes.

Resolved:

That the recommendations contained in the report be agreed.